
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Regular Session Agenda 
Monday, December 9, 2024 

5:00 p.m. 
LINC Library Innovation Center 

501 8th Avenue, Greeley, CO 80631 
 

This is also streamed virtually by GoToMeeting. 
 
The meeting can be viewed from your computer, tablet, or smartphone.  
https://www.mylibrary.us/hpldboardmeetings.  To view the Board meeting online, use this link and select the date 
of the meeting you want to join.  If you have public comments, you may submit questions at the time of signing 
up for the meeting.  All participants will be muted.  
 
New to GoToMeeting?  Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/399313765 
 
If you wish to address the Board via Public Comment, please attend the meeting in person.  If you 
are unable to attend in person, you can submit public comments to the Board prior to the Board 
meeting via Formstack: https://hpld.formstack.com/forms/board_questions 
 
The High Plains Library District Board may take action on any of the following agenda items as presented or 
modified prior to or during the meeting, and items necessary or convenient to effectuate the agenda items.   
 
1.0 OPENING OF MEETING 

1.1 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Approval of Agenda  
1.3 Approval of Consent Agenda 

a. November 18, 2024 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes 
1.4 The Good We Do 
1.5 Public Comment 

 

https://www.mylibrary.us/hpldboardmeetings
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/399313765
https://hpld.formstack.com/forms/board_questions


2.0 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION 
2.1 Introduction of new Trustees (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
2.2 Final Budget Overview (Action) – Natalie Wertz, HPLD Finance Manager 

a. Resolution 24-3, Adopt Budget 
b. Resolution 24-4, Appropriate Sums of Money 
c. Resolution 24-5, Set Mill Levy, Weld County 
d. Resolution 24-6, Set Mill Levy, Boulder County 

2.3 Member Library List of Services – Owner's Representative Reimbursement Guidelines Update 
(Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 

2.4 New Raymer MOU & Lease (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
2.5 Request to Create a Restricted Library Card (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive 

Director 
2.6 Outgoing Trustee Recognition (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 

 

3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT 
3.1 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 

a. January 13, 2025 RS 
3.2 District Updates – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 

 
4.0 BOARD COMMENTS 

4.1 Chair Report 
4.2 Vice-Chair 
4.3 Secretary/Treasurer 
4.4 Committees 
4.5 Other Board Members 

5.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) 
5.1 C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (f) Personnel Matters – Matthew Hortt’s Performance Appraisal  

 
6.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Upcoming meetings: 
January 13, 2025, 5:00p.m.:  HPLD Board of Directors Meeting - Regular Session  
LINC Library Innovation Center, 501 8th Avenue, Greeley, CO 80631 
 



 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Regular Session and Executive Session Minutes 

Monday, November 18, 2024 
Eaton Public Library 

132 Maple Avenue, Eaton, CO 80615 
 

1.0 OPENING OF MEETING AT 5:01PM 
1.1 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance 

All Trustees were Present unless noted: 
Chair Mary Heberlee 
Vice-Chair Joyce Smock 
Secretary/Treasurer Nick Nakamura was excused 
Trustee Deana Lemos-Garcia  
Trustee Teresa Nuñez attended virtually until 6:00p.m. 
Trustee Gerri Holton 
Trustee Michael Wailes 

Quorum was established. 
 
Also Attending were: 

Legal Counsel William Garcia 
 
HPLD Staff: Dr. Matthew Hortt, Marjorie Elwood, Natalie Wertz, Niamh Mercer, Rick 
Medrano, and Kim Parker 
 
Guests:  Daniel Carey from Eaton Public Library, 

 Dan Spykstra, Quentin Rockwell, and Brooke Kardos from Wember, Inc 
 

Chair Heberlee read the following statement into record:  
High Plains Library District is dependent on the trust of its community to successfully achieve its mission. 
Therefore, it is crucial that all Trustees conduct business on behalf of the High Plains Library District 
with the highest level of integrity, truth, and honor, avoiding any impropriety or the appearance of 
impropriety. 

 
1.2 Approval of Agenda  

MOTION to approve the agenda: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock 
SECOND: Trustee Deana Lemos-Garcia  
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE: 5:0 

 



1.3 Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. October 7, 2024 Regular Session Meeting Minutes 
b. November 4, 2024 Special Session Meeting Minutes 

MOTION to approve the consent agenda: Trustee Gerri Holton 
SECOND: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock 
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE: 5:0 

 
1.4 The Good We Do 

Dr. Hortt reported that at Grover’s grand opening on November 2nd, there were 110 
attendees, 25 new library cards issued, and 68 items checked out.  During their first week, 
November 5th through 9th, 28 people visited and 21 items were checked out.  During their 
second week, 37 people went to the library, which included 30 people who attended a 
Wizardly Wands program, and 24 items were checked out. The numbers have exceeded 
staff’s expectations. 
 
Rick Medrano, HPLD’s Outreach Manager, added that the number of visitors has been in 
the double digits every day this week.  Trustee Wailes asked about 24-hour access, and 
Dr. Hortt replied that it may start in January.   
 

1.5 Public Comment 
No Public Comment 
 

2.0 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION 
2.1 New Member Library Director Introduction (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD 

Executive Director 
Dr. Hortt introduced Beth Gudmestad, Fort Lupton Public and School Library’s new Director, 
and Lisa Bugbee, Northern Plains Public Library’s new Director. 

INFORMATION ONLY, NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN 
 

2.2 Trustee Appointments (Information) – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
Interviews for new Trustees were held on Oct 25th for the Region 1 and Region 5 positions, 
because Teresa Nuñez’ and Mary Heberlee’s terms will end on December 31st.  The selection 
committee, which consisted of representatives from HPLD’s Establishing Bodies and HPLD 
Board Governance Committee, chose Jenna Evans to represent Region 1 and Lisa Taylor to 
represent Region 5.  The ratifications are underway. 

INFORMATION ONLY, NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN 
 

2.3 2025 Board Meeting Calendar (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director  
The 2025 proposed Board Calendar was presented by Dr. Hortt.  He explained that the reason 
the calendar does not follow the traditional practice of moving to a different library every 
other month is because of construction happening in the first half of the year and the need to 
be able to possibly schedule an executive session for each meeting.  Some of the libraries do 
not have that capacity. 



MOTION to approve the Board Meeting Calendar for 2025: Trustee Gerri Holton 
SECOND: Trustee Michael Wailes 
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE: 5:0 

 
2.4 HR7525 / S4673 – the Special District Act (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive 

Director 
 

The Special District Grant Accessibility Act bill will allow libraries and districts to receive 
federal funding directly, rather than it having to go to the CO State Library and then be sent to 
libraries.  Because the Act will directly impact HPLD financially, staff recommend that the 
Board direct them to add HPLD as a supporter of the National Special Districts Coalition site 
and generate letters of support.  During discussion, Dr. Hortt was asked about the negatives 
and the impact on Member Libraries, and responded that there is no negative to it and Member 
Libraries will benefit from it.   

MOTION to add HPLD as a supporter on the NSDC site and generate letters of support: 
Trustee Deana Lemos-Garcia  
SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton 
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE: 5:0 

Staff will email a copy of the letter of support to the Trustees. 
  

2.5 Guaranteed Maximum Price Approval for Carbon Valley Regional Library Remodel (Action) - 
Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the Carbon Valley remodel has been set at 
$863,334.00, which is within the budget of $880,000.00.  If approved by Trustees, 
construction can begin as early as Christmas Eve this year. 

MOTION to approve the GMP and direct the Executive Director to sign the document: 
Trustee Deana Lemos-Garcia  
SECOND: Trustee Michael Wailes 
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE: 5:0 

 
2.6 Guaranteed Maximum Price Approval for Mead Library (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD 

Executive Director 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the Mead Library is $9,000,000: the exact budget 
amount.    

MOTION to approve the GMP and direct the Executive Director to sign the document: 
Vice-Chair Joyce Smock 
SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton 
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE: 5:0 

 



2.7 Member Library List of Services – Owner’s Representative Reimbursement (Action) - Dr. 
Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
In 2019, staff received direction from the Board to pay to cover owner’s rep fees for their 
construction projects if they use Wember, HPLD’s contracted owner’s rep, and follow specific 
guidelines.  Some Member Directors have now raised concerns about some of the 
requirements in the guidelines.  Dr. Hortt asked the Trustees to provide direction.  The 
guidelines are listed in the Board Packet and can be found at https://www.mylibrary.us/wp-
content/uploads/2024/11/HPLD-Board-Packet-11.18.24-RS-and-ES.pdf. 
 
After discussion, the following direction was given. 

DIRECTION FROM THE BOARD: Keep the guidelines as is and add verbiage 
to them to clarify that HPLD’s Owner’s Rep must be used, then bring the 
changes to the Board to approve. 

 

3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT 
3.1 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 

a. December 9, 2024 RS 
An item may be added to review a New Raymer lease for their PCC.   
 

3.2 District Updates – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
Dr. Hortt attended the Briggsdale Arts and Crafts Fair, which supports the Briggsdale Library. 
 
HPLD hosted a Naturalization party at LINC that was put on by their Outreach team and the 
NOCO Immigrant & Refugee Center.  The party celebrated those who went through the 
citizenship program that HPLD and the IRC offers.  Dr. Hortt reported that twenty-nine 
students from the program have received their naturalization paperwork so far this year.   
 
Colorado Gives Day is December 10th, and HPLD’s Friends & Foundation provided 
information on how to give. 
 
Staff is looking at Dec. 13th to have a Board social event for Trustees, former Trustees, and 
their guests.  Information will be sent to them. 
 
60 Plus Rides has invited the District to be a partner and help spread the word in order for 
them to attract more volunteers and users. 
 
Dr. Hortt let the Board know that the Hill & Park Senior Center project is running into internet 
connection issues, and they are working on solutions. 
 
The Friends & Foundation Night at Erie was rescheduled to November 20th at 5:00p.m. 
because of the snowstorm that prevented them from having it when it was originally 
scheduled. 

 

https://www.mylibrary.us/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/HPLD-Board-Packet-11.18.24-RS-and-ES.pdf
https://www.mylibrary.us/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/HPLD-Board-Packet-11.18.24-RS-and-ES.pdf


4.0 BOARD COMMENTS 
4.1 Chair Heberlee went to Grover and Briggsdale and has been spending a lot of time at Northern 

Plains Public Library.  She is pleased with what we are doing to help Briggsdale, Grover and 
New Raymer.   

4.2 Vice-Chair Smock said she’s glad that CVR and Mead have starting dates for construction and 
she thanked everyone who was at Grover.   

4.3 Other Board Members 
Trustee Gerri Holton commented on how important libraries are to our communities.  Ft. 
Lupton just had a Day of the Dead celebration, which is a coming together and honoring of 
communities.  Trustee Nunez was also there. 
Trustee Michael Wailes said he was pleasantly surprised at the number of people at the Grover 
grand opening.  On another note, he was sitting next to two guys at a luncheon the other day.  
He never would have guessed that they were library patrons; but they got on the topic of LINC, 
and it was fascinating to hear two guys who don’t look like library guys talk about libraries.   

Trustee Teresa Nuñez left the meeting at 6:00p.m. 
 

5.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) 
5.1 C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b) Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney – 

Lochbuie case 
5.2  C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b) Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney – 

Granado case 
MOTION to adjourn from Regular Session and enter into Executive Session under 
C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) – Pursuant to section C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b), for the sole purpose 
of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney – Lochbuie case 
and Granado case: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock  
SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton 
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE: 4-0 

 
An executive session meeting of the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District was 
convened at 6:15pm on November 18, 2024 for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice on 
specific legal questions from an attorney regarding the Lochbuie case, which started at 6:18 and 
ended at 6:34p.m., and the Granado case, which started at 6:34p.m. and ended at 7:02.  
Attending were Board Trustees Mary Heberlee, Joyce Smock, Deana Lemos-Garcia, Gerri 
Holton, and Michael Wailes; Legal Counsel William Garcia; and Dr. Matthew Hortt and 
Natalie Wertz. During the executive session, the Board conferred with an attorney and did not 
engage in substantive discussion of any matter not enumerated in C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4). The 
Board did not adopt any policy, position, resolution, rule, regulation, or take any formal action. 
The executive session was adjourned at 7:03p.m. 

 

 
Upcoming meetings: 
December 9, 2024 at 5:00p.m.:  HPLD Board of Directors Meeting - Regular Session  
LINC Library Innovation Center, 501 8th Avenue, Greeley, CO 80631 
 





HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION  
 
 

Meeting date: December 9th, 2023 
Type of item: Information  
Subject: Trustee Appointments 
Presented by:  Dr. Matthew Hortt, Executive Director  
Recommendation: Item for information only, no action to be taken          

 
Background 
The Board Terms for our Region 1 Trustee, Teresa Nuñez, & Region 5 Trustee, Mary Heberlee, are 
set to end on December 31st, 2024. The recruitment/selection process was conducted per the Board 
bylaws earlier this year and requests for ratifications have been sent to our Establishing Bodies. 

Considerations 
• The Selection Committee recommended that Jenna Evans be appointed to the HPLD Board to 

serve as the Region 1 Trustee, and that Lisa Taylor be appointed to the HPLD Board to serve 
as the Region 5 Trustee. 

• The ratification process for both candidates is underway  
  
Recommendation  

Item for information only, no action to be taken          





HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION  
 
 

Meeting date: December 9th, 2024 
Type of item: Action 
Subject: Budget for 2025 
Presented by:  Matthew Hortt, Executive Director, and Natalie Wertz, Finance Manager 
Recommendation:  Staff recommend that the board adopt the budget and mill levy resolutions for 
2025 

 
Background 
As required by state statute, we are presenting the budget for 2025. Below is a summary. 
 
Considerations 
Property Tax    $54,088,098 
Specific Ownership Tax      1,440,000 
Other Revenue        1,312,941 
Total Revenues   $56,841,039 
 
Salaries    $14,928,727 
Benefits        5,670,369 
Other Operations     10,449,235 
Total Operations   $31,048,331 
 
Capital Outlay     30,706,444 
Distributions to Member Libraries  11,741,717 
Total Expenditures   $73,496,492 
 
Decrease in Net Assets  $16,655,453 
 
 The 2025 proposed budgeted revenues have decreased $13,749,751 or 19.48% from the 2024 budget. 
The major source of revenue for the District is derived from a proposed 3.177 mill levy for operations 
applied to the assessed value of portions of Weld and Boulder County properties.  
 
The 2025 proposed budget includes funds for a Mead Library, renovations at Carbon Valley Library, 
renovations at Farr Library, DSS Expansion, and a quality level of library services. The proposed 
budget includes planning for a 4% merit increase for staff and additional personnel to support the 
innovation spaces, event activity, and facility use, and provide other library services. Since the 
certificates of participation were paid off in December 2019, there is no proposed 2025 budget for the 
debt service fund.  
 
The proposed budget has been reviewed by the Finance Committee and is being recommended for 
approval.  
 



Recommendation  

Staff recommend that the Board adopt the budget and mill levy resolutions for 2025. 



















































































































































































































































 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT BUDGET 
24-3 

 
 A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH 
FUND AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT, 
COLORADO, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF 
JANUARY 2025, AND ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2025. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District has appointed 
Dr. Matthew Hortt, High Plains Library District Executive Director, to prepare and submit a 
proposed budget to said governing body at the proper time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Dr. Matthew Hortt has submitted a proposed budget to this governing 
body for its consideration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published or posted in accordance with the 
law, said proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a 
public hearing was held on December 9, 2024, and interested taxpayers were given the 
opportunity to file or register any objections to said proposed budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the High Plains 
Library District, Colorado: 

 
Section 1.  That estimated expenditures for each fund are as follows: 
 
  General Fund       $73,496,492 
  Debt Service Fund       $   
 
   
Section 2.  That estimated revenues for each fund are as follows: 
 
  General Fund: 
   From un-appropriated surpluses    $ 105,543,925 
   From sources other than general 
       property tax            2,786,969 
   From the general property tax 
       levy            54,054,070 
     Total General Fund    $162,384,964 

                                                                                                         
   Debt Service        $  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Resolution to Adopt Budget 
Page 2  
High Plains Library District 
 
 
 Section 3. That the budget, as submitted, amended, and hereinabove summarized 
by fund, hereby is approved and adopted as the budget of the High Plains Library District for 
the year stated above. 
 
 Section 4. That the budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed by the 
Chairman, High Plains Library District Board of Trustees, and made a part of the public 
records of the District. 
 
 ADOPTED, this 9th day of December, A.D., 2024. 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
____________________________________ 
Chairman, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
____________________________________ 
Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Trustees 



RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY 
24-4 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO THE VARIOUS 

FUNDS AND SPENDING AGENCIES, IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSE 
AS SET FORTH BELOW, FOR THE HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT, 
COLORADO, FOR THE 2025 BUDGET YEAR. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has adopted the annual budget in accordance 
with the local Government Budget Law, on December 9, 2024 and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Library Board has made provision therein for revenues in an 
amount equal to or greater than the total proposed expenditures as set forth in said 
budget, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is not only required by law, but also necessary to appropriate the 
revenues provided in the budget to and for the purposes described below, so as not to 
impair the operations of the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the High 
Plains Library District, Colorado: 
 
 That the following sums are hereby appropriated from the revenue of each fund, 
to each fund, for purposes stated: 
 
  General Fund: 
   Current Operating Expenses  $31,048,331 
   Capital Outlay       30,706,444 
   Transfers (internal activities)          
   Distribution to Member Libraries          11,741,717 
                           
    Total General Fund  $73,496,492 
 
  Debt Service Fund: 
   Principal & Interest & Other   $   
 
      
 
 
ADOPTED, this 9th day of December, A.D., 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________   
Chairman, Board of Trustees 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Trustees  





RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES 
24-5 

 
A RESOLUTION LEVYING GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE 

YEAR 2024 TO HELP DEFRAY THE COSTS OF GOVERNMENT FOR THE 
HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT, COLORADO, FOR THE 2025 BUDGET 
YEAR. 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District has 

adopted the annual budget in accordance with the Local Government Budget 
Law, on December 9, 2024, and 

 
WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for 

general operating expenses is $53,221,522 
 
WHEREAS, the 2024 valuation for assessment for the High Plains Library 

District as certified by the Weld County Assessor is $16,752,131,528 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 

High Plains Library District, Colorado: 
 
Section 1:  That for the purpose of meeting all general operating expenses 

of the High Plains Library District during the 2025 budget year, there is hereby 
levied a tax of 3.177 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment 
of all taxable property within the District for the year 2024. 

 
Section 2:  That the District Executive Director is hereby authorized and 

directed to immediately recertify to the County Commissioners of Weld County, 
Colorado, the mill levies for the High Plains Library District as hereinabove 
determined and set. 

 
ADOPTED, this 9th day of December, A.D., 2024. 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chairman, Board of Trustees 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Trustees 

 
 





RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES 
24-6 

 
A RESOLUTION LEVYING GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE 

YEAR 2024 TO HELP DEFRAY THE COSTS OF GOVERNMENT FOR THE 
HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT, COLORADO, FOR THE 2025 BUDGET 
YEAR. 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District has 

adopted the annual budget in accordance with the Local Government Budget 
Law, on December 9, 2024, and 

 
WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for 

general operating expenses is $832,548 
 
WHEREAS, the 2024 valuation for assessment for the High Plains Library 

District as certified by the Boulder County Assessor is $262,054,731 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 

High Plains Library District, Colorado: 
 
Section 1:  That for the purpose of meeting all general operating expenses 

of the High Plains Library District during the 2025 budget year, there is hereby 
levied a tax of 3.177 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment 
of all taxable property within the District for the year 2024. 

 
Section 2:  That the District Executive Director is hereby authorized and 

directed to immediately recertify to the County Commissioners of Boulder 
County, Colorado, the mill levies for the High Plains Library District as 
hereinabove determined and set. 

 
ADOPTED, this 9th day of December, A.D., 2024. 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
________________________________ 
Chairman, Board of Trustees 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Trustees 

 
 





HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION  
 
 

Meeting date: December 9th, 2024 
Type of item: Action   
Subject: Member Library List of Services – Owner's Representative Reimbursement 
Presented by:  Dr. Matthew Hortt, Executive Director  
Recommendation: Staff recommend the Board approve the recommended changes to the 
guidelines.           

 
Background 
In June 2019, following a discussion on construction costs, the Board gave staff direction to 
recommend guidelines for Member Libraries use of contracted Owner’s Representative services. In 
September 2019, the Board approved specific guidelines for this funding. In November 2024, some 
concerns were raised by the Member Libraries about this service. The Board provided staff with 
direction to propose language regarding the use of the under contract on-call Owners Rep. The 
Guidelines and additional proposed language can be found in the consideration section in red.   
 
 
Considerations 
 
The Member Directors have asked for clarification on which Owner’s Representative Firms will 
qualify for this reimbursement. Staff have informed the Members they would need to utilize the 
Owners Representatives that we hold an on-call contract with.   
 
The Member Directors have raised the following concerns about this: 
 

1. As the district is reimbursing member libraries and we would be obligated to pay Wember 
directly, this means that we would also be required to enter into a contract with Wember.  

2. This contract would then have to be awarded without going through our Town’s standard RFP 
process which is required by our purchasing policy if the contract is above a set minimum 
amount. Assuming the contracted amount exceeds the $100,000 we would also be allocating 
tax-payer funds to a vendor who hasn’t been competitively selected.   

3. This requirement is distinct from other reimbursement provided by the district none of which 
requires a specific vendor (training reimbursement, equipment reimbursement, etc.). 

4. This requirement removes our ability to select an owner’s rep with input from local 
stakeholders including our architect, staff, and Town Board.  

 
Guidelines  
  
1. Member Library construction project must be presented, and Owner’s Rep Task Order approved by 
the HPLD board prior to any fees being paid. This must be done in time for budget process for the 
year that the fees are expected to be paid – by mid-August the year prior to when the fees will be 
paid. 
2. The District will only fund the use of the current On-Call Owner’s Rep Contracted Firm. If the 
District does not have a current On-Call Owner’s Rep, under contract funds will not be available. 



This does not preclude the Member Library from utilizing their RFP process and their funds for an 
Owner’s Rep, however, to access the reimbursement, the HPLD contracted firm must be used.  
3.Project limit on a 9% scale of the total expected project cost with a maximum of $100,000 limit per 
project. 
4 Limit of 1 project per 2-year cycle 
5. Owners Rep fees will be paid by the member library and submit for a reimbursement request with 
copies of the invoices to HPLD. 
6. Each project will require that the Member Library submission for grants and reimburse HPLD if 
grants are received. 
 

Recommendation  

Staff recommend the Board approve the recommended changes to the guidelines.           



HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION  
 
 

Meeting date: December 9th, 2024 
Type of item: Information   
Subject: Friends of Raymer MOU/Lease 
Presented by:  Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
Recommendation: Staff recommends the Board approve the proposed MOU and Lease   

 
Background  
The Friends of Raymer have been working on converting a Mercantile Building in New Raymer 
into a Local History Center. This has been an ongoing project since the District was first 
approached about the project in 2021. Initial discussion on this project included the library 
working with the Friends of Raymer to include a Public Computing Center (PCC) in the Local 
History Center. The PCC would be very similar to the one which we installed in the Briggsdale 
Community Library.  

In April, staff were contacted by the Friends of Raymer regarding the project. The Friends of 
Raymer are near completion of the project. During the April 2024 HPLD Board Meeting, the 
Trustees approved a Library Support Fund for the Raymer Project and directed Staff to negotiate 
an MOU.  Staff have been working with the Friends of Raymer and our legal counsel on the 
MOU. The agreement is based on the existing MOU with the Briggsdale Community Library 
and includes verbiage on the Library Support Fund. In May 2024, the HPLD Board approved the 
MOU as did the Friends of Raymer. In mid-August, staff were contacted by the Friends of 
Raymer, as they had been informed that their insurance on the building would be canceled due to 
a lack of a lease between the Friends of Raymer and HPLD. The Friends of Raymer have asked 
if HPLD will consider entering into a lease for use of the space. In September the Board agreed 
to consider a lease for the project.  

 
Considerations 

• Staff have worked with our legal counsel and representatives from the Friends of Raymer 
to create both documents  

• Legal Counsel recommend the use of a gross commercial lease 
• Lease terms mirror the MOU terms and will be set at the rate of the Library Support Fund  
• Lease gives HPLD more control of the facility than apparent in the MOU 

 
Staff Recommendation  
Staff recommends the Board approve the proposed MOU and Lease   





 

____MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
CONCERNING LIBRARY SERVICES 

AT THE HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY AT FRIENDS OF RAYMER MUSEUM 
AND RESOURCE  CENTER 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") Concerning Library Services at the High Plains 
Library at the Friends of Raymer (CO) Museum and Resource Center is entered into by and 
between the High Plains Library District, a library district formed under the provisions of the 
Colorado Library Law, CRS §24-90-101 et seq. (the "District"), and the Friends of Raymer Inc. 
("FOR"), located in New Raymer, Colorado.  

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the District is vested with the authority of administering 
the affairs of the District; and  

 

WHEREAS, the District desires to support an equal level of access to library services for all 
District residents; and  

 

WHEREAS, New Raymer, Colorado is included within the District; and  

 

WHEREAS, FOR and the District desire to offer certain library services at the Museum and 
Resource Center (the "MARC") located at 319 Center Avenue within New Raymer , Colorado. 

 

WHEREAS, FOR and the District are authorized to enter into memoranda of understanding and 
commercial leases and wish to set forth their agreements concerning services at the MARC; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the District 
and FOR agree as follows.  

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1.   Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated herein by reference. 



 

2.   Purpose. The purpose of this MOU is to set forth the rights, obligations and responsibilities 
of the District and FOR concerning library services at the MARC.  The terms of a 
Commercial Lease for 319 Center Ave., Suite 102, New Raymer, Colorado are provided 
in that certain Commercial Lease between the Parties to be considered 
contemporaneously with this MOU.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of this 
MOU and the Commercial Lease, the Commercial Lease shall control. 

3.   Term.   Unless otherwise terminated as hereinafter provided, this MOU shall be effective 
beginning ____________July 1, 2024,  until ________________June 30th. 2025, and it is 
renewable annually, upon review of all parties, in order to assure that services are 
continuing to meet public needs. 

4.   Obligations of the District.   The District shall have the following obligations: 

a. To assume costs and expenses to provide computers, Internet connectivity, 
peripherals, furniture, and support equipment for use at the MARC by persons 
receiving library services to include: 

i. 2 PCs 

ii. Wireless Internet Access for public inside and outside of the 
building. People parked in front of the library will be able to access 
wireless when sitting in their vehicles. 

iii. 1 tabletop copier/fax/printer/scanner 

iv. 1 PC reservation system 

v. 1 Mobile Collaboration/Visualization station (ie. MondoPad) 

vi. Filtering software 

vii. Dedicated broadband connection 

viii. Dedicated Electrical wiring and cabling 

b. To provide Information Technology staff to troubleshoot computer and network 
operations. 

c. To provide property insurance for District-owned equipment and furniture. 

d. As staffing allows, to provide FOR services such as computer classes, restocking 
pre-made library cards, delivery & pick-up services for materials, and summer 
reading programming; 

e. To assist FOR volunteers with issuing District library cards to allow access to 
virtual library services, troubleshooting equipment, and to monitor the condition 
of District equipment 

Commented [1]: Have we already taken possession of the 
premises?  If so, we can add this date to the lease. 

Commented [2R1]: No we haven't. We will just need to 
update.  



 

f.  To prepare a Commercial Lease for rental of 319 Center Ave., Suite 102, New 
Raymer, Colorado to be considered for approval in conjunction with this 
MOU.ovide “library support funding” in total of $1,200 annually. Funds are 
provided to support the MARC as a value for the use of space in the MARC  

 

5. Obligations of FOR.   FOR shall have the following obligations: 

a. To assume responsibility for costs or expenses related to maintaining space for 
library services, including planning and implementation to create and maintain a 
comfortable and safe facility for the public to use; 

b. To prepare and provide space for the MARC's equipment, furniture, and services, 

c. To determine the location and assist in the installation of equipment and 
furnishings; 

d. To include MARC furniture during custodial services and facilities maintenance; 

e. To provide security inside and around the building; 

f. To pay for utilities and to provide property insurance for the building; and 

g. To assist with promoting library services through FOR communication channels. 

h. Following review and negotiation, to enter into the Commercial Lease prepared 
by the District for rental of 319 Center Avenue, Suite 102, New Raymer, 
Colorado. 

6.   Computer Use.   All users of library services at the MARC shall be required to hold a 
District library card and to comply with all District rules for computer use. Access on 
District equipment shall be through a filtered network. 

7.   Relationship of the Parties.   Nothing herein shall create or be construed as creating a 
partnership, joint venture or agency relationship between the parties and no party shall 
have the authority to bind the other in any respect. The District shall be the employer of 
all persons providing services under paragraph 4 of this MOU, the FOR shall be the 
employer/volunteer manager of all persons providing services under paragraph 6 of this 
MOU. Each party shall, for its employees/volunteers, have the sole responsibility for 
paying salary, including benefits, and shall maintain such general liability, workers' 
compensation and unemployment insurance coverage as are required by the State of 
Colorado. 

8.   Property.   All equipment and other property provided by the District shall remain the 
property of the District. The District shall provide insurance on such property, and the 
FOR shall provide property and liability insurance for the MARC. Each party shall 



 

provide to the other an annual Certificate of insurance, naming the other party as an 
additional insured. If the District, as an additionally insured party, is directly connected to 
an increase of the insurance cost; the District shall reimburse FOR for the increased costs 
for up to 25% above the insurance rate calculated for FOR without the District as an 
additionally insured party. 

9.   Needs Assessment.   At least annually, the parties will assess the management of and the 
continuing need for the services provided under this MOU, using the measures described 
in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and is incorporated herein by reference. 

10.   Termination.   Each of the parties may terminate this MOU by providing thirty (30) days 
written notice to the other parties. 

11.   Miscellaneous Provisions. 

a. Notice.   Any notice required or permitted by this MOU shall be in writing and 
either delivered or served upon the other party or mailed to the other party, 
postage prepaid, certified receipt requested, to the respective addresses as set forth 
below. Any such notice so deposited in the mail shall be deemed received within 
two (2) days after deposit. Either party may change her/its address by giving 
notice of the change in accordance with this paragraph. 

 

If to the Friends of Raymer:   Friends of Raymer, Inc. 
Attn: Trina Kauk, President 
Preferred Address 

       25265 County Road T.5 
       Brush, CO  80723 
 

If to the District:    High Plains Library District  
Attn: Dr. Matthew Hortt, Executive Director 
2650 W. 29th St.  
Greeley, CO 80631 

 
 
 

b. Entire Agreement; Amendment; Binding Effect.   This MOU and the 
Commercial Lease, attached as Exhibit B, contains the entire understanding of the 
parties. It may not be changed without an agreement in writing signed by both 
parties. This MOU is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties, their 
successors, assigns and representatives.  In the event of a conflict between the 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline



 

terms of this MOU and the Commercial Lease, the Commercial Lease shall 
control. 

 
c. Severability.   If any provision of this MOU is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable for any reason, such clause or provision 
shall be modified to the extent necessary to make this MOU legal and 
enforceable. If it cannot be so modified, such clause or provision shall be severed 
from the remainder of the MOU to allow the remainder of the MOU to remain in 
full force and effect. 

 
 
 
d. Waiver.   Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants 

or conditions shall not be deemed a waiver thereof, nor shall any waiver or 
relinquishment of any right or power hereunder at any one or more times be 
deemed a waiver of such right or power at any other time. 

 
e. Appropriations.   No provision of this MOU shall be construed or interpreted: i) 

to directly or indirectly obligate either party to make any payment in any year in 
excess of amounts appropriated for such year; ii) as creating a debt or multiple 
fiscal years direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever within 
the meaning of Article X, Section 6 or Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado 
Constitution or any other constitutional or statutory limitation or provision; iii) as 
a donation or grant by either party to, or in aid of, any person, company or 
corporation within the meaning of Article XI, Section 2 of the Colorado 
Constitution. 

 
f. Compliance with Applicable Laws.   At all times during the term of this MOU, 

the parties shall strictly adhere to and comply with all applicable federal and state 
laws, orders and regulations as they currently exist or may hereafter be amended, 
including but not limited to all applicable laws and regulations respecting 
discrimination. 

 
g. Governmental Immunity; Limitation of Liability.   Each party to this MOU 

shall be responsible for its own negligence and that of its directors, officers, 
employees, agents, and representatives. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this MOU to the contrary, no term or condition hereof shall be construed or 
interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, 
benefits, protection, or other provisions of the Colorado Governmental Immunity 
Act, CRS §24-10-101 et seq., as now existing or hereafter amended. The 



 

provisions of this IGA shall be controlled, limited and otherwise modified to limit 
the liability of the parties hereto to the above cited law. 

 
h. Legal Authority. Each party hereto warrants that it has the legal authority to 

enter into this MOU and that it has taken all actions required by its procedures, 
by-laws and/or applicable law to exercise that authority and to lawfully authorize 
its undersigned signatory to execute this MOU. 

 
i.    No Third Party-Beneficiaries.  This Agreement shall not confer any rights or 

remedies upon any person other than FOR and the District and their respected 
successors and assigns. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this MOU to be executed on the date 
set forth below. 

 

 

                 

____________________________________________ 

DATE 

 

 

 

HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT 

 

By:_________________________________________________ 

 Mary Heberlee, President, Board of Trustees 

 

 

FRIENDS OF RAYMER, INC. 

 

By:_____ ____________________________________________ 

 Trina Kauk, Board President 



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 1 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

 
COMMERCIAL LEASE 

(Gross) 
 
This Commercial Lease (the “Lease”) is made on TBD  (date) and is entered into by and 

between Landlord (as defined below) and Tenant (as defined below). In consideration of the payment of the Rent (as defined 
below); all costs, charges, and expenses which Tenant assumes, agrees, or is obligated to pay to Landlord pursuant to the Lease 
(the “Additional Rent”); and the performance of the promises by Tenant set forth below, Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and 
Tenant hereby accepts, the Premises (as defined below), subject to the terms and provisions set forth in the Lease. 

 
PARTIES, PREMISES, AND DEFINED TERMS 

 
1. Landlord:  .  Friends of Raymer Inc (FOR) , a(n) 

 Nonprofit Organization   [Individual, Company, or Type of Entity] (the “Landlord”). 

2. Tenant:  High Plains Library District (HPLD) , a(n) 
 Library District   [Individual, Company, or Type of Entity] (the “Tenant”). 

3. Premises: Landlord is the owner of certain real estate legally described as Lot 1, Block 11, Baldwin & Whittier 
Addition, Weld County, Colorado (the “Real Estate”). The Real Estate is improved with a two-story wood frame building (the 
“Improvements”) (the Real Estate and the Improvements are collectively referred to as the “Property”). Landlord hereby leases 
and demises to Tenant the following described portion of the Property: Address 319 Center Ave. , Suite 102
 , consisting of 280  square feet (the “Premises”). 

4. Term: Landlord Leases the Premises to Tenant from twelve o’clock noon on the TBD  day of  
 , 2024  and until 11:59 p.m. on the TBD  day of  , 
2025  (the “Term”). Subject to Tenant’s performance of all obligations under the Lease, including, without 
limitation, payment of Rent and Additional Rent, Tenant shall enjoy quiet possession of the Premises.  

5. Rent: Rental for the first year of the Term is $1,200 and 00/100 Dollars ($1,200) payable in equal installments 
of one annual installment of $1,200 and 00/100 Dollars ($1,200) in advance to Landlord on the first day of each calendar month 
for that month’s rental before twelve o’clock noon, without notice (the “Rent”). This amount is listed as the “Library Support 
Fund” in the existing MOU between the two parties. Unless otherwise provided in the Lease, all payments due under the Lease, 
including Additional Rent, shall be mailed, or delivered to Landlord at the following address:   25265 
County Road T.5 Brush, CO 80723    . If the 
Term does not begin on the first day of the month, the Rent shall be prorated accordingly. Rent for subsequent years of the Term 
[shall] [shall not] be increased. In the event Rent is subject to increase, it shall be increased on the following basis:   
 . 

6. Option: Tenant [shall] [shall not] have the option to extend the Term, pursuant to the terms and conditions 
contained herein, for an additional 1 year period (the “Option”). In the event Tenant desires to exercise the Option, Tenant shall, 
at least   days before expiration of the Term, provide Landlord with written notice of its intent to exercise the Option. 
Rent shall be adjusted and payable as follows: with 30 days written notice     
      
  . The option shall only be 
exercisable provided that no Tenant Defaults currently exist and that no Tenant Defaults have occurred over the Term of the 
Lease which have not been cured by Tenant as provided by the Lease. 

7. Security Deposit: Prior to occupying the Premises, Tenant shall keep on deposit with Landlord a security, 
cleaning, and damage deposit in the amount of   and  /100 Dollars ($ ) 
as security for the return of the Premises at the expiration of the Term in as good condition as when Tenant entered the Premises, 
normal wear and tear excepted, as well as the faithful, timely, and complete performance of all other terms, conditions, and 
covenants of the Lease (the “Security Deposit”). 

THIS LEASE HAS IMPORTANT LEGAL CONSEQUENCES. THE PARTIES SHOULD CONSULT LEGAL 
COUNSEL BEFORE SIGNING. 

Commented [1]: Did this start July 1, 2024 like the MOU? 

Commented [2]: When is rent due? 

Commented [3]: I changed it to rent in the MOU. 



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 2 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

8. Use: The Premises shall be used for general library services and a Public Computing Center, provided this use 
conforms with applicable zoning regulations. Tenant shall not, without the prior written consent of Landlord, permit the Premises 
to be used for any other purpose. 

9. Utilities/Additional Rent: Tenant shall be responsible for paying the following utilities on the Premises, which 
charges shall be deemed Additional Rent:  Electric  Gas  Water  Sewer  Phone  Cable/ Satellite T.V.  Internet 
Access  Refuse Disposal  Other   . If the Premises shares meter facilities for utilities, the charges shall be 
allocated to each tenant by Landlord based upon a reasonable basis. In the event Tenant fails to timely pay any of the 
aforementioned charges, it shall be deemed a Default. Landlord shall be responsible for any remaining utilities not specifically 
designated to be paid by Tenant, including utilities for Common Areas (as defined below). 

10. Payment of Additional Rent: Additional Rent shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord in monthly installments 
concurrent with the Rent.  

11. Late Payments: If any Rent, Additional Rent, or other payment is received later than   days after the 
date when due, the parties agree that Additional Rent in the amount of   percent ( %) of the 
outstanding sums shall also be due and payable. The addition of such amount and the collection thereof shall not operate to waive 
any other rights of Landlord for nonpayment of Rent, or for any other reason. 

12. Repairs and Maintenance of the Premises: The [Landlord] [Tenant] shall maintain the foundation, exterior 
walls, and roof of the Improvements in good repair. The [Landlord] [Tenant] agrees to keep all the other improvements (including 
plate glass and other windows, window frames, and doors) upon the Premises repaired and maintained in good order as described 
in the Lease. The [Landlord] [Tenant] shall properly irrigate and care for all trees, shrubbery, and lawn and the [Landlord] 
[Tenant] shall keep all driveways, sidewalks, and parking areas on the Premises free and clear of ice and snow. 
 

13. Parking: For the Term, Landlord grants to Tenant and its employees and invitees, at no additional charge, a 
Parking License. The Parking License is a non-exclusive license for the use of   parking 
spaces upon the Property (the “Parking License”). The Parking License shall be effective for the term of the Lease as defined 
below. Landlord and Tenant [shall] [shall not] designate specific spaces for the Parking License prior to commencement of the 
Term. 

PREMISES 
 

14. Common Areas: The common areas are all areas outside of the Premises upon the Property designated by 
Landlord for common use of Tenant, its employees, licensees, invitees, contractors, and Landlord (the “Common Areas”). 
Landlord grants to Tenant, its employees, licensees, invitees and contractors a non-exclusive license over such Common Areas 
of the Property necessary to the use and occupancy of the Premises and Parking License (the “Common Area License”). Said 
License shall be effective for the Term of the Lease. Tenant shall not use Common Areas for any type of storage, or parking of 
trucks, trailers, or other vehicles without the advance written consent of Landlord. All parking and Common Areas of Property 
shall at all times be subject to the management of Landlord, and are not part of the Premises. All use of the Common Areas shall 
be at the sole risk of Tenant, and Landlord is not liable for any damages, or injuries occasioned by such use. Landlord shall have 
the right, power, and authority to compile, promulgate, change, and modify all rules and regulations that it may, in its sole 
discretion, deem necessary for use of the Common Areas. Tenant agrees to abide by and conform with all rules and regulations 
pertaining to such Common Areas. Landlord shall have the right to construct, maintain, and operate lighting facilities; to police 
and from time to time change the area, location, and arrangement of the Common Areas and facilities; to restrict employee 
parking to certain areas; to temporarily close all, or any portion of the Common Areas; to discourage non-customer parking; and 
to do and perform any and all such other acts in and to said Common Areas and facilities as Landlord shall determine in its sole 
and absolute discretion. 

15. Condition of Premises and Representations: Tenant is familiar with the physical condition of the Premises 
and the Property. Except as may otherwise be provided in the Lease, Landlord makes no representations, or warranties as to the 
physical condition of the Premises, or the Property, or their suitability for Tenant’s intended use. In the event that Landlord agrees 
to provide any renovations, build-out, or any other labor and materials for the improvement of the Premises, or any allowance 
for improvements to be effected by Tenant, such work, or allowance shall be specified and agreed to between the parties in a 
separate document appended to this Lease and which shall constitute a part of this Lease (“Work Letter”). Other than the work, 
if any, to be performed pursuant to Tenant’s Work Letter, the Premises are rented “as is,” in current condition, and all warranties 
are hereby expressly disclaimed. Landlord makes no representations, or warranties as to the suitability of the Premises for 

Commented [4]: Do we want to use Library Services to be more 
broad? 

Commented [5R4]: Yes, we probably should. Something like 
general library services and a public computing center. 



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 3 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

Tenant’s intended use. Landlord further makes no representations, or warranties as to whether Tenant’s intended use will 
necessitate changes, or alterations to the Premises in order to comport with local, state, or federal laws and regulations. Such 
laws and regulations include, but are not limited to: health code regulations, access regulations (including, but not limited to, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act), and zoning regulations. Tenant understands and agrees that in the event actions, alterations, or 
improvements are required in order to bring the Premises into compliance with any local, state, or federal laws and regulations 
because of Tenant’s intended use, Tenant shall be solely responsible for any and all associated costs and expenses relative thereto. 
Tenant further indemnifies and agrees to hold Landlord harmless from any and all claims and liabilities that may arise by virtue 
of Tenant’s use of the Premises in violation of any local, state, or federal laws and regulations. 

16. Check-In Inspection: Landlord and Tenant may conduct an inspection of the Premises at the time of 
possession. A check-in inspection sheet may be completed at that time and the information contained therein shall be sufficient 
and satisfactory proof of the condition of the Premises at the time of possession, should a subsequent dispute arise at a later date 
as to the condition of the Premises at the time of move-in. 

17. Use of Premises: Tenant, in consideration of the leasing of the Premises, agrees as follows: 

a. Use of Premises: To use and occupy the Premises solely as and for the use specified in Paragraph 8 
of the Lease. Landlord’s consent to the aforementioned use is not an assurance, or warranty that the Premises’ attributes are 
sufficient for Tenant’s use. Tenant represents and warrants that it has conducted sufficient due diligence to assure itself that the 
Premises are suitable for its use, and that such use is permitted by applicable law. Landlord expressly reserves its right to lease 
space within the Property as it sees fit, unless explicitly prohibited by other provisions in the Lease. Landlord’s demise of the 
Premises to Tenant does not preclude Landlord from leasing other parts of the Property to other tenants who may be viewed 
objectively, or subjectively as competing with Tenant. 

b. Signage: Tenant shall be permitted to erect a sign or signs upon the Premises, provided all signage is 
in compliance with size and other requirements of Landlord and as may be set forth by applicable ordinances and regulations 
including, but not limited to, sign and design ordinances. All signage shall conform to aesthetic and design criteria, themes, and 
standards of the Property and the Improvements. Additionally, Landlord may provide signage space on a common, or community 
sign located on the Property. 

c. Vacancy: It will be deemed a Default of the Lease if the Premises are left vacant and unoccupied for 
over thirty (30) days. In addition to other remedies contained in the Lease, the Landlord may, without being obligated to do so, 
and without terminating the Lease, retake possession of the Premises and relet, or attempt to relet them for such rent and upon 
such conditions as the Landlord deems best, making such changes and repairs as may be required, giving credit for the amount 
of rent so received, less all expenses of such changes and repairs. Tenant shall be liable for the balance of the Rent and Additional 
Rent herein reserved until the expiration of the Term. 

d. Legal Compliance: Tenant and its licensees and invitees shall comply with and abide by all federal, 
state, county, and municipal laws and ordinances in connection with the occupancy and use of the Premises. Tenant and its 
licensees and invitees may not possess, or consume alcoholic beverages on the Premises unless they are of legal age. No alcoholic 
beverages shall be sold upon the Premises unless proper licenses have been obtained. No illegal drugs or controlled substances 
(unless specifically prescribed by a physician for a specific person occupying or present upon the Premises) shall be permitted 
upon the Premises. Tenant hereby covenants and agrees to use its reasonable efforts to prevent and preclude its employees, guests, 
invitees, etc. from the aforementioned illegal conduct. Tenant and its licensees and invitees shall not use the Premises in any way 
that may result in an increase of the rate or cost to the Landlord to insure the Property. No hazardous or dangerous activities are 
permitted upon the Premises. 

e. Additional Prohibitions: Neither Tenant nor its subtenants, licensees, volunteers, employees, guests, 
or invitees shall act in any manner that would interfere with, or be a nuisance to, other subtenants, occupants, or invitees of the 
Premises, or adjacent property owners, or adjacent tenants, or that would interfere with those other parties’ quiet enjoyment of 
their premises. Said prohibition includes, but is not limited to, loud noises, loud music, noxious or unpleasant odors, and 
disruptive behavior or actions. Tenant shall not permit any portion of the Premises to be used in a manner that may endanger the 
person or property of Landlord, co-tenants, or any person living on or near the Premises. Tenant shall keep all portions of the 
Premises in a clean, safe, sanitary, and habitable condition. 

f. Pets and Animals: Pets or animals [shall] [shall not] be permitted upon the Premises. 



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 4 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

g. Storage/Trash: Tenant shall store all personal property entirely within the Premises. Tenant shall 
store all trash and refuse in adequate containers within the Premises, which Tenant shall maintain in a neat and clean condition, 
or within designated Common Areas so as not to be visible to members of the public in, or about the Property, and so as not to 
create any health or fire hazard. 

h. Hazardous Material Prohibited: Tenant shall not cause or permit any hazardous material to be 
brought upon, kept or used in, or about the Premises by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, or invitees. If Tenant breaches 
the obligations stated in the preceding sentence, or if the presence of hazardous material on the Premises caused, or permitted by 
Tenant results in contamination of the Premises, or if contamination of the Premises by hazardous material otherwise occurs for 
which Tenant is responsible to Landlord for resulting damage, then Tenant shall indemnify, defend, and hold Landlord harmless 
from any and all resulting claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities, or losses. 

i. Quiet Enjoyment: Landlord agrees that upon Tenant paying the Rent and performing Tenant’s 
obligations under the Lease, Tenant shall peacefully and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Premises throughout the Term or until 
the Lease is terminated pursuant to its terms. Landlord shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any other tenant or 
third party that may interfere with Tenant’s use and enjoyment of the Premises. In the event of any transfer or transfers of 
Landlord’s interest in the Premises or in the Property, other than a transfer for security purposes only, the Landlord shall be 
automatically relieved of any and all obligations and liabilities accruing from and after the date of such transfer. 

j. Rules and Regulations: Landlord shall provide Tenant with a copy of all rules and regulations 
affecting the Premises, and Tenant shall abide by all such rules and regulations. 

18. Subletting or Assignment: Tenant shall not sublet the Premises or any part thereof, nor assign the Lease or 
any interest therein, without the prior written consent of Landlord. Such consent shall be at the sole discretion of Landlord. As a 
condition of assignment or sublease, Landlord may require the continued liability of Tenant or a separate personal guaranty by 
Tenant or its principal. If Tenant is a corporation, limited liability company, or other entity that is not a natural person, any change 
in ownership of more than thirty percent (30.0%) (over any period) of the ownership interest shall be deemed an assignment of 
the Lease. In the event an assignment or sublease is permitted, all payments from assignee or sublessee shall be made directly by 
said party to Landlord, and not through Tenant. 

19. Surrender of Premises: Tenant will return the Premises to Landlord at the expiration of the Term in as good 
order and repair as when Tenant took possession, loss by casualty and normal wear and tear excepted. Any deterioration or 
damage caused by accident, abuse, carelessness, or negligence shall not be considered normal wear and tear. In the event that 
Tenant fails to redeliver the Premises in appropriate condition, Landlord may restore the Premises to appropriate condition, 
including repair, replacement, and cleaning. The cost of any work necessitated shall be deducted from the Security Deposit; if 
the Security Deposit is insufficient to cover work performed, Tenant shall be obliged to pay the additional balance. 

20. Removal of Fixtures/Redelivery: Tenant shall remove, at the termination of the Lease, provided Tenant is 
not in Default, Tenant’s moveable trade fixtures and other items of personal property that are not permanently affixed to the 
Premises. Tenant shall remove the alterations and additions and signs made by Tenant as Landlord may request and repair any 
damage caused by such removal. Tenant shall peaceably yield up the Premises and all alterations and additions thereto (except 
such as Landlord has requested Tenant to remove); and all fixtures, furnishings, floor coverings, and equipment that are 
permanently affixed to the Premises which shall thereupon become the property of the Landlord. Any personal property of Tenant 
not removed within five (5) days following such termination shall, at Landlord’s option, become the property of Landlord. 

PAYMENTS 
 

21. Payments/Dishonored Checks: Payments shall be deemed received when actually delivered to, and received 
by, Landlord at the payment location. Dishonored checks and any checks received late in the mail will be treated as late payments. 
Additional bank and handling charges may also be assessed in the event of a dishonored check. The foregoing items shall be 
deemed Additional Rent. Landlord may require Tenant to replace such dishonored check with a money order, cashier’s check, 
or other good funds. Landlord may further require that all subsequent payments after a dishonored check be paid with a money 
order, cashier’s check, or other good funds. 

22. Partial Payment: If any partial payment is made by Tenant, it shall be allocated first to the payment of 
Additional Rent, including, without limitation, utilities (if applicable) and other expenses; and second to unpaid Rent. Acceptance 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Commented [6]: I recommend we keep. 

Commented [7R6]: I’m ok with that.  

Formatted: Not Strikethrough



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 5 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

by Landlord of any partial payment shall not waive the right of Landlord to require immediate payment of the unpaid balance of 
Rent or waive or affect Landlord’s rights to institute legal proceedings including, without limitation, an eviction action. 

23. No Offset: No assent, express or implied, to any Default of any one or more of the agreements hereof shall be 
deemed or taken to be a waiver of any succeeding or other Default. The covenants set forth in the Lease are independent. Tenant 
shall have no right to withhold or set off any Rent due Landlord. 

24. Joint and Several Obligations of Tenant: In the event more than one person comprises Tenant, it is expressly 
understood and agreed that each person comprising Tenant is jointly and severally liable for any and all obligations of Tenant in 
the Lease. This means that all persons comprising Tenant are each, together and separately, responsible for all of Tenant’s 
obligations. Landlord may, at its option, determine whom to hold responsible. 

SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 

25. Security Deposit: 

a. Security Deposit:  No Security Deposit shall be required. To secure the faithful performance by 
Tenant of all of Tenant’s covenants, conditions, and agreements in the Lease to be observed and performed, Tenant shall deposit 
with Landlord the Security Deposit prior to commencement of the Lease. The Security Deposit may also be used in the event of 
termination of the Lease by re-entry, eviction, or otherwise. 

b. Application of Security Deposit: The parties agree: (1) that the Security Deposit or any portion 
thereof, may be applied to the curing of any Default that may exist, and/or payment of subsequent damages and costs incurred 
by Landlord, without prejudice to any other remedy or remedies that the Landlord may have on account thereof, and upon such 
application Tenant shall pay Landlord on demand the amount so applied, which shall be added to the Security Deposit so it will 
be restored to its original amount; (2) that should the Premises be conveyed by Landlord, the Security Deposit or any portion 
thereof may be turned over to Landlord’s grantee, and if the Security Deposit is turned over, Tenant agrees to look to such grantee 
for such application or return; (3) that Landlord shall not be obligated to hold Security Deposit as a separate fund; (4) that should 
the Rent be increased, the Security Deposit shall be increased in the same proportion within thirty (30) days of such Rent increase; 
and (5) that should a Default occur, Landlord may, as an additional remedy, increase the Security Deposit at its sole discretion. 

c. Return of Security Deposit: If Tenant shall perform all of its respective covenants and agreements 
in the Lease, the Security Deposit, or the portion thereof not previously applied pursuant to the provisions of the Lease, together 
with a statement, shall be returned to Tenant without interest, no later than sixty (60) days after the expiration of the Term, or 
any renewal or extension thereof (or such earlier time if required by applicable law), provided Tenant has vacated the Premises 
and surrendered possession thereof to Landlord. 

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 
 

26. Improvements, Repairs, and Maintenance: Subject to the limitations set forth in Paragraphs 27 and 28 
below, either Landlord or Tenant, as specified in Paragraph 12 above, shall be responsible for the cost and condition of the 
respective improvements, repairs, and maintenance relating to all structural components, interior and exterior walls, floors, 
ceiling, roofs, sewer connections, plumbing, wiring, appliances, and glass used in connection with the Premises.  

27. Landlord’s Limited Responsibility: In the event Paragraph 12 of the Lease provides for Landlord’s 
responsibility for certain repair and maintenance, Landlord shall be responsible for: (i) any repairs, replacements, restorations, 
or maintenance that have been necessitated by reason of ordinary wear and tear, and (ii) any repairs, replacements, restorations, 
or maintenance that have been necessitated by sudden natural forces, or acts of God, or by fire not caused by Tenant. The cost of 
any maintenance, repairs, or replacements necessitated by the act, neglect, misuse, or abuse of Tenant, its agents, employees, 
customers, licensees, invitees, or contractors shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord promptly upon billing. Landlord shall use 
reasonable efforts to cause any necessary repairs to be made promptly; provided, however, that Landlord shall have no liability 
whatsoever for any delays in causing such repairs to be made, including, without limitation, any liability for injury to or loss of 
Tenant’s business, nor shall any delays entitle Tenant to any abatement of Base and Additional Rent or damages, or be deemed 
an eviction of Tenant in whole or in part. 

28. Tenant’s Allowed Responsibilities: In the event Paragraph 12 of the Lease provides for Landlord’s 
responsibility for certain repair and maintenance, Tenant shall not perform or contract with third parties to perform any repairs 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Commented [8]: How much? 

Commented [9R8]: This should be deleted.  

Formatted: Strikethrough



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 6 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

of any kind upon the Premises or structure upon which the Premises are located. In the event any repair that is the responsibility 
of Landlord becomes necessary, Tenant shall notify Landlord as soon as possible, and allow reasonable time for the work to be 
completed. Any unauthorized work performed or contracted for by Tenant will be at the sole expense of Tenant. 

29. Tenant’s Duty to Repair: In the event Paragraph 12 of the Lease provides for Tenant’s responsibility for 
certain repair and maintenance, Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, maintain the Premises, including, but not limited 
to, the plumbing, exterior plate glass, other windows, and window frames, electric wiring, HVAC equipment, fixtures, appliances, 
and interior walls, doorways, and appurtenances belonging thereto installed for the use or used in connection with the Premises 
(and including the foundation, exterior walls, and roof of the Improvements, if so provided in Paragraph 12). Tenant shall, at 
Tenant’s own expense, make as and when needed all repairs to the Premises and to all such equipment, fixtures, appliances, and 
appurtenances necessary to keep the same in good order and condition. Tenant repairs shall include all replacements, renewals, 
alterations, and betterments (the “Tenant Repairs”). All Tenant Repairs shall be equal or better in quality and class to the original 
work. In the event Tenant fails to complete Tenant Repairs, Landlord may obtain them and bill Tenant for such work as Additional 
Rent. 

30. Tenant Improvements: Unless otherwise provided in the Work Letter, Tenant shall be solely responsible for 
any and all improvements and alterations within the Premises necessary for Tenant’s intended use of the Premises, including, 
but not limited to, electrical wiring, HVAC, plumbing, framing, drywall, flooring, finish work, telephone systems, wiring, and 
fixtures necessary to finish the Premises to a condition suitable for Tenant’s use (the “Tenant Work”). 

31. Improvements/Prior Landlord Consent: Tenant agrees to submit to Landlord complete plans and 
specifications, including engineering, mechanical, and electrical work covering any and all contemplated Tenant Work, if 
applicable, and any subsequent improvements or alterations of the Premises. The plans and specifications shall be in such detail 
as Landlord may require, and in compliance with all applicable statutes, ordinances, regulations, and codes. As soon as reasonably 
feasible thereafter, Landlord shall notify Tenant of any failures of Tenant’s plans to meet with Landlord’s approval. Tenant shall 
cause Tenant’s plans to be revised to the extent necessary to obtain Landlord’s approval. Tenant shall not commence any Tenant 
Work, or any other improvements, or alterations of Premises until Landlord has approved Tenant’s plans. 

32. Tenant Work and Repairs/Compliance with Codes/Mechanic Liens: Tenant shall procure all necessary 
permits before undertaking Tenant Work or Tenant Repairs. Tenant shall perform all Tenant Work or Tenant Repairs in a good 
and workmanlike manner. Tenant shall use materials of good quality and perform Tenant Work or Tenant Repairs only with 
contractors previously approved of in writing by Landlord. Tenant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, building, health, fire, and safety codes. Tenant hereby agrees to hold Landlord and Landlord’s 
agents harmless and indemnified from all injury, loss, claims, or damage to any person or property (including the cost for 
defending against the foregoing) occasioned by, or growing out of Tenant Work or Tenant Repairs. Tenant shall promptly pay 
when due the entire cost of any Tenant Work or Tenant Repairs on the Premises undertaken by Tenant, so that the Premises shall 
at all times be free of liens for labor and materials. Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold Landlord harmless of 
and from all liability, loss, damages, costs, or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with any 
claims of any nature whatsoever for work performed for, or materials, or supplies furnished to Tenant, including lien claims of 
laborers, materialmen, or others. Should any such liens be filed or recorded against the Premises or the Improvements with 
respect to work done for, or materials supplied to, or on behalf of Tenant, or should any action affecting the title thereto be 
commenced, Tenant shall cause such liens to be released of record within five (5) days after notice thereof. If Tenant desires to 
contest any such claim of lien, Tenant shall nonetheless cause such lien to be released of record by the posting of adequate 
security with a court of competent jurisdiction as may be provided by Colorado’s mechanic’s lien statutes. If Tenant shall be in 
default in paying any charge for which such mechanic’s lien or suit to foreclose such lien has been recorded or filed and shall 
not have caused the lien to be released as aforesaid, Landlord may (but without being required to do so) pay such lien or claim 
and any associated costs, and the amount so paid, together with reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in connection therewith, shall 
be immediately due from Tenant to Landlord as Additional Rent. 

33. Common Area Maintenance: Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to maintain and repair Common Areas of 
Property, including walks and parking lots. The cost of any maintenance, repairs, or replacements necessitated by the act, neglect, 
misuse, or abuse by Tenant, its employees, licensees, invitees, or contractors shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord. Landlord shall 
use reasonable efforts to cause any necessary repairs to be made promptly; provided, however, that Landlord shall have no 
liability whatsoever for any delays in causing such repairs to be made, including, without limitation, any liability for injury to or 
loss of Tenant’s business, nor shall any delays entitle Tenant to any abatement of Rent or damages, or be deemed an eviction of 
Tenant in whole or in part. 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Commented [10]: We can delete.  No duty to repair under 12. 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Commented [11R10]: I’m good with deleting.  

Formatted: Strikethrough



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 7 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

34. Keys/Locks: Tenant shall not place any additional locks upon the Premises, including, but not limited to, 
exterior and interior doors. Tenant shall not cause any of the locks or cylinders therein to be changed or re-keyed. 

35. Waste/Rubbish Removal: Tenant shall not lay waste to the Premises. Tenant shall not perform any action or 
practice that may injure the Premises or Property. Tenant shall keep the Premises and the Property surrounding the Premises free 
and clear of all debris, garbage, and rubbish. Unless otherwise provided for in the Lease, Tenant shall be responsible for 
contracting for and paying for trash and debris removal required by Tenant’s use of the Premises. 

DEFAULT, NOTICE AND REMEDIES 
 

36. Default: If Tenant is in arrears in the payment of any installment of Rent, any Additional Rent, or any portion 
thereof, or is in violation of any other covenants or agreements set forth in the Lease (a “Default”) and the Default remains 
uncorrected for a period of three (3) days after Landlord has given written notice thereof pursuant to applicable law, then Landlord 
may, at Landlord’s option, undertake any of the following remedies without limitation: (a) declare the Term of the Lease ended; 
(b) terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the Premises and reenter and repossess the Premises pursuant to applicable 
provisions of the Colorado Forcible Entry and Unlawful Detainer statute; (c) recover all present and future damages, costs, and 
other relief to which Landlord is entitled; (d) pursue Landlord’s lien remedies; (e) pursue breach of contract remedies; and (f) 
pursue any and all available remedies in law or equity. In the event possession is terminated by reason of a Default prior to 
expiration of the Term, Tenant shall remain responsible for the Rent and Additional Rent, subject to Landlord’s duty to mitigate 
such damages. Pursuant to §§ 13-40-104(d.5) and (e.5), and 13-40-107.5, C.R.S., hereby incorporated by reference, in the event 
repeated or substantial Defaults(s) under the Lease occur, Landlord may terminate Tenant’s possession upon a written Notice to 
Quit, without a right to cure. Upon such termination, Landlord shall have available any and all of the remedies listed above.  

37. Abandonment: In the event of an abandonment of the Premises, Landlord may, without being obligated to do 
so and without terminating the Lease, retake possession of the Premises and exercise any of the remedies contained in Paragraph 
38 below. 

38. Re-Entry: In the event of re-entry by Landlord as a result of abandonment or a Default by Tenant: 

a. Tenant shall be liable for damages to Landlord for all loss sustained, including, without limitation, the 
balance of the Rent and Additional Rent, court costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees; 

b. Tenant’s personal property and the personal property of any guest, invitee, licensee, or occupant may 
be removed from the Premises and left on the street or alley, or, at Landlord’s option, it may be removed and stored, or disposed 
of at Landlord’s sole discretion. Landlord shall not be deemed a bailee of the property removed and Landlord shall not be held 
liable for the property. Tenant shall indemnify Landlord for any expense in defending against any claim by Tenant or third party 
and for any legal expense, cost, fine, or judgment awarded to a third-party as a result of Landlord’s action under the term of the 
Lease; 

c. Landlord may attempt to relet the Premises for such rent and under such terms as Landlord believes 
appropriate; 

d. Landlord may enter the Premises, clean and make repairs, and charge Tenant accordingly; 

e. Any money received by Landlord from Tenant shall be applied first to Rent, Additional Rent, and 
other payments due; and 

f. Tenant shall surrender all keys and peacefully surrender and deliver up possession of the Premises. 

INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

39. Negligent Damages: Tenant shall be responsible for and reimburse Landlord for any and all damages to the 
Premises or Property and persons and property therein caused by the negligent, grossly negligent, reckless, or intentional acts of 
itself, its employees, agents, invitees, licensees, or contractors. 

40. Liability Indemnification/Insurance: Tenant shall hold Landlord, Landlord’s agents, and their respective 
successors and assigns, harmless and indemnified from all injury, loss, claims, or damage to any person or property while on the 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Commented [12]: This is a typical term.  May want to keep. 

Commented [13R12]: I am ok with keeping.  

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Commented [14]: We deleted all of 38.  Should this be deleted 
too? 

Commented [15R14]: I think so. 



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 8 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

Premises, or any other part of the Property, or arising in any way out of Tenant’s business, which is occasioned by a negligent, 
intentional, or reckless act, or omission of Tenant, its employees, agents, invitees, licensees, or contractors. Tenant shall maintain 
public liability insurance insuring Landlord and Landlord’s agents, as their interest may appear, against all claims, demands, or 
actions for injury to or death in an amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) arising out of any one occurrence, 
made by, or on behalf of any person, firm, or corporation, arising from, related to, or connected with the conduct and operation 
of Tenant’s business, including, but not limited to, events on the Premises and anywhere upon the Property. Tenant shall also 
obtain coverage in the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence covering Tenant’s contractual liability under 
the aforesaid indemnification clauses. 

41. Fire/Casualty Insurance: Tenant shall maintain plate glass insurance covering all exterior plate glass in the 
Premises, fire, extended coverage, vandalism, and malicious mischief insurance and such other insurance as Tenant may deem 
prudent, covering all of Tenant’s stock in trade, fixtures, furniture, furnishings, floor coverings, and equipment in the Premises. 

42. Insurance Requirements: All of Tenant’s insurance related to the Premises and the Property shall be in the 
form and from responsible and well-rated companies satisfactory to Landlord, shall name Landlord as an additional insured 
thereunder, and shall provide that the insurance will not be subject to cancellation, termination, or change except after at least 
thirty (30) days prior written notice to Landlord. The policies or duly executed certificates for such insurance shall be provided 
to Landlord prior to commencement of Term and upon request of Landlord. 

43. Waiver of Liability: Landlord and Landlord’s agents and employees shall not be liable for, and Tenant waives 
all claims for, damage to property sustained by Tenant, employees, agents or contractors, or any other person claiming through 
Tenant, resulting from any accident in or upon the Premises or the Property of which they shall be a part, including, but not 
limited to, claims for damage resulting from: (1) any equipment or appurtenances becoming out of repair; (2) Landlord’s failure 
to keep the Property or the Premises in repair; (3) injury done or occasioned by wind, water, or other act of God; (4) any defect 
in, or failure of, plumbing, heating, or air-conditioning equipment, electric wiring, or installation thereof, gas, water and steam 
pipes, stairs, porches, railings, or walks; (5) broken glass; (6) the backing-up of any sewer pipe, or downspout; (7) the bursting, 
leaking, or running of any tank, tub, sink, sprinkler system, water closet, waste pipe, drain, or any other pipe or tank in, upon, or 
about the Property or Premises; (8) the escape of steam, or hot water; (9) water, snow, or ice being upon, or coming through the 
roof, skylight, doors, stairs, walks, or any other place upon, or near such Property, or the Premises, or otherwise; (10) the falling 
of any fixtures, plaster, or stucco; (11) fire or other casualty; and (12) any act, omission, or negligence of co-Tenants, or of other 
persons or occupants of the Property, or of adjoining or contiguous buildings, or of adjacent or contiguous property. 

44. Third-Party Liability: Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant for any damage by or from any act or negligence 
of any co-tenant or other occupant of the Improvements, or by any owner or occupant of adjoining or contiguous property. 
Landlord shall not be liable for any injury or damage to persons or property resulting in whole or in part from the criminal 
activities of others. To the extent not covered by normal fire and extended coverage insurance, Tenant agrees to pay for all 
damage to the Improvements. 

45. Landlord Insurance: Insurance shall be procured by Landlord in accordance with its sole discretion. All 
awards and payments thereunder shall be the property of the Landlord, and Tenant shall have no interest in the same. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord agrees to obtain building liability and hazard insurance required to be carried for the 
Property and Premises and adequate hazard insurance, which covers replacement cost of the Property and Premises. 

46. Indemnification Fees and Costs: In case any claim, demand, action, or proceeding is made or brought against 
Landlord, its agents, or employees, by reason of any obligation on Tenant’s part to be performed under the terms of the Lease or 
arising from any act of negligence of Tenant or its agents or employees, or which gives rise to Tenant’s obligation to indemnify 
Landlord, Tenant shall be responsible for all costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred 
in defending or prosecution of the same, as applicable. 

OTHER PROVISIONS 

47. Destruction, or Condemnation of Premises: Landlord’s and Tenant’s duties and responsibilities are as 
follows when destruction or condemnation of the Premises occurs: 

a. Partial Destruction of the Premises: In case of partial destruction of the Premises by fire, or other 
casualty, Landlord at its discretion may repair the Premises with reasonable dispatch after notice of said partial destruction. 



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 9 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

Tenant shall remain responsible for payment of Rent. Subparagraph (d) of this Paragraph shall apply if Landlord determines that 
the partial destruction will not be repaired. 

b. Premises Untenable: If the Premises are made totally untenable by fire, the elements, or other 
casualty, or if the building in which the Premises are located is partially destroyed to the point where Landlord, within a 
reasonable time, decides not to rebuild, or repair, then Subparagraph (d) of this Paragraph shall apply. 

c. Condemnation: If the whole or part of the Premises are taken by any authority for any public or 
quasi-public use, or purpose, then Subparagraph (d) of this Paragraph shall apply. All damages and compensation awarded for 
any taking shall be the sole property of Landlord. 

d. Termination of Term: Tenant agrees that if Landlord decides not to repair, or rebuild the Premises 
where the destruction has occurred as described in Subparagraphs (a) and (b) of this Paragraph, the Term hereby granted by the 
Lease shall cease and the Rent and Additional Rent shall be prorated and payable up to the time of the cessation of the Term. A 
refund will be given for the balance of any Rent paid in advance for which Tenant did not have use of the Premises due to the 
cessation of the Term under the conditions of this Paragraph. Where the Premises have been taken due to condemnation as 
described in Subparagraph (c) of this Paragraph, the Term of the Lease shall cease and terminate upon the date that possession 
of the Premises is taken by the authority. Rent and Additional Rent shall be prorated and payable up to the time of the cessation 
of the Term. Tenant shall not hold Landlord liable for any damages as a result of any of the acts or events described in this 
subparagraph. 

48. Holdover: Tenant shall vacate the Premises and remove all of Tenant’s personal property from the Premises 
prior to 11:59 p.m. on the date the Term expires. Landlord may immediately commence eviction proceedings at its sole discretion. 
If, after the expiration of the Lease, Tenant shall remain in possession of the Premises and continue to pay Rent without a written 
agreement as to such possession, then such tenancy shall be regarded as a month-to-month tenancy, at a monthly rental, payable 
in advance, equivalent to the last month’s Rent paid under the Lease, and subject to all the terms and conditions of the Lease. 

49. Entry by Landlord: Landlord may enter the Premises at reasonable hours for reasonable purposes (such as 
repairs, inspections, or re-letting to prospective new tenants), upon reasonable notice to Tenant. Landlord may also enter the 
Premises in the event of emergency, without notice, or in the event of vacancy of the Premises, as described in Paragraph 38. 

50. Guarantor: In the event the Lease is guaranteed, the person(s) guaranteeing the Lease (“Guarantor”) hereby 
absolutely guarantees Tenant’s obligations and performance under the Lease. Guarantor further agrees to be bound by the same 
covenants and conditions of the Lease and hereby makes the same warranties and representations as Tenant hereunder. If Tenant 
defaults in the performance of its obligations under the Lease, Guarantor will perform said obligations. 

51. Subordination/Estoppel/Attornment: The Lease shall be subordinate to all existing and future mortgages, 
deeds of trust, and other security interests on the Premises and to any and all extensions, renewals, refinancing, and modifications 
thereof. Tenant shall execute and deliver whatever instruments may be required for such purposes, or for the purpose of informing 
a potential or existing lender or purchaser of the Property as to the status of its tenancy. Any such instruments or estoppel letters 
shall contain all information reasonably required by Landlord or other entity in conjunction with such transaction. Tenant agrees 
to attorn to a lender or other party coming into title to the Property upon written request of Landlord. 

52. Notices: All notices required to be sent under the Lease shall be in writing and either: (i) delivered as provided 
by applicable law, including, inter alia, § 13-40-101, C.R.S., et seq., [Colorado Forcible Entry and Unlawful Detainer statute]; 
(ii) personally delivered, with proper proof of service; or (iii) sent via U.S. first class mail, postage prepaid. All notices required 
to be sent to Landlord shall be sent or delivered to the address where the Rent is to be paid, and all notices required to be sent to 
Tenant shall be sent or delivered to the Premises, unless otherwise specified in the Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all 
notices involving or concerning § 13-40-101, C.R.S., et seq. shall be delivered as provided by statute. 

53. Attorneys’ Fees: In the event Tenant or Landlord fails to perform any of its obligations under the Lease, or in 
the event a dispute arises concerning the meaning or interpretation of any provision of the Lease, the defaulting party, or the 
party not prevailing in such dispute, as the case may be, shall pay any and all costs and expenses incurred by the other party in 
enforcing or establishing its rights hereunder, including, without limitation, court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

54. Governing Law: The Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Colorado. Venue shall be proper in the county where the Premises are located. 

Commented [16]: We can delete 

Commented [17R16]: I’m good with deleting.  



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 10 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

55. Amendments and Termination: Unless otherwise provided in the Lease, the Lease may be amended, 
modified, or terminated only by a written instrument executed by Landlord and Tenant.  

56. Captions: The paragraph titles or captions in the Lease are for convenience only and shall not be deemed to 
be part of the Lease. 

57. Pronouns; Joint and Several Use of Certain Terms: Whenever the terms referred to in the Lease are singular, 
the same shall be deemed to mean the plural, as the context indicates, and vice versa. All references to the “Landlord” shall mean 
Landlord and/or its authorized agents, contractors, or employees as may be required by the specific context. All references to the 
“Tenant” shall mean each and every person comprising Tenant, or an individual person, or combination of persons comprising 
Tenant as may be required by the specific context. 

58. Waivers: No right under the Lease may be waived except by written instrument executed by the party who is 
waiving such right. No waiver of any breach of any provision contained in the Lease shall be deemed a waiver of any preceding 
or succeeding breach of that provision, or of any other provision contained in the Lease. No extension of time for performance 
of any obligations or acts shall be deemed an extension of the time for performance of any other obligations or acts. 

59. Heirs, Assigns, Successors: The Lease is binding and inures to the benefit of the heirs, assigns, and successors 
in interest to the parties, subject to the restrictions on assignment in Paragraph 18. 

60. Time of the Essence: Time is of the essence of the Lease, and each and all of its provisions. 

61. No Reservation of Option: Submission of this instrument for examination or signature by Tenant does not 
constitute a reservation of or option for lease, and is not effective as a lease or otherwise until execution and delivery by both 
Lessor and Tenant. 

62. Credit Reports: Tenant hereby grants Landlord permission to obtain from time to time investigative consumer 
reports to ascertain the creditworthiness of Tenant and Tenant’s guarantors, if applicable. 

63. Corporate Authorization: If Tenant is a corporation, each individual executing the Lease on behalf of the 
corporation represents and warrants that he is duly authorized to execute and deliver the Lease on behalf of said corporation in 
accordance with a duly adopted resolution of the Board of Directors of the corporation and that the Lease is binding upon the 
corporation in accordance with its terms. Lessee agrees to provide Landlord with such a resolution within five (5) days of the 
execution of the Lease. 

64. Severability: If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of the Lease, or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance shall, at any time or to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Lease, or the 
application of such term, or provision to persons, or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid, or unenforceable, 
shall not be affected thereby, and each provision of the Lease shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted 
by law. 

65. Lead-Based Paint Disclosure Rule: Housing built before 1978 may contain lead-based paint. Lead from paint, 
paint chips, and dust can pose health hazards if not managed properly. Lead exposure is especially harmful to young children 
and pregnant women. Before renting pre-1978 housing, landlords must disclose the presence of known lead-based paint and/or 
lead-based paint hazards in the dwelling. Tenant must also receive a federally approved pamphlet on lead poisoning prevention. 
In the event the Premises were constructed before 1978, Landlord shall comply with the Lead-Based Paint Disclosure, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 4852d. 

66. Other Applicable Laws: Federal, state, county, or municipal laws and ordinances may affect the Premises, 
the Lease, and Landlord/Tenant relationship that are not specifically addressed in the Lease. Landlord and Tenant should consult 
legal counsel prior to execution of the Lease to ascertain such information. 

67. ADA Compliance: Tenant shall not cause or permit any violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the 
“ADA”) to occur on, or about the Premises by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees. Tenant shall indemnity, 
defend and hold Landlord harmless from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities, or losses 
(including, without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or restriction of use of rentable or usable 
space, damages arising from any adverse impact on marketing of space, and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys’ fees, 



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 11 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

consultation fees and expert fees) that arise during or after the Term as a result of such violation. This indemnification of Landlord 
by Tenant includes, without limitation, costs incurred in connection with any investigation of site conditions or any remedial 
work required by any federal, state, or local governmental agency or political subdivision because of any ADA violation present 
on or about the Premises. Tenant shall be permitted to make such alterations to the Premises as may be necessary to comply with 
the ADA, at Tenant’s sole expense and upon the prior written consent of Landlord. Without limiting the foregoing, if the presence 
of any ADA violation on the Premises caused or permitted by Tenant results in remedial work on the Premises, Tenant shall 
promptly take all actions at its sole expense as are required by any authority to comply with the ADA; provided that Landlord’s 
consent to such actions shall first be obtained, which shall not be reasonably withheld. 

68. Additional Provisions: In the event that there are any additional agreements between the parties or provisions 
with respect to the Premises, an Addendum may be attached to the Lease, which shall be incorporated by this reference as a part 
of the Lease. An Addendum containing additional provisions [is] [is not] attached. The Lease and the attached Addendum 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties. 

OBLIGATIONS OF HPLD PER MOU 

69.  The District shall have the following obligations: 

a. To assume costs and expenses to provide computers, Internet connectivity, peripherals, furniture, 
and support for equipment for use at the Public Computing Center by persons receiving library 
services to include; 

 i. 2 PCs 

 ii.  Wireless Internet Access for public inside and outside of the building. People 
parked in front of the facility will be able to access wireless when sitting in their vehicles. 

 iii. 1 tabletop copier/fax/printer/scanner 

 iv.  1 PC reservation system 

v.  1 Mobile Collaboration/Visualization station (ie. MondoPad) 

 vi. Filtering software 

 vii.  Dedicated broadband connection  

viii. Dedicated Electrical wiring and cabling   

b.  To provide Information Technology staff to troubleshoot computer and network operations; 

c.  To provide property insurance for District-owned equipment and furniture; 

d.  As staffing allows, to provide the FOR services such as computer classes, restocking pre-made 
library cards, delivery & pick-up services or materials, and summer reading programming;  

e.  To assist FOR volunteers with issuing District library cards to allow access to virtual library 
services, trouble shooting equipment, and to monitor the condition of District equipment; 

f.  To provide “Library support funding” in total of $1,200 annually. Funds are provided to support the 
FOR as a value for the use of space in the facility;  

OBLIGATIONS OF FOR PER MOU 

 70.  FOR shall have the following obligations: 

Commented [18]: Delete if use MOU as well.  Just cite the 
MOU as a document signed in conjunction with the lease. 

Commented [19R18]: Ok, let’s leave it in until we know if we 
need to have the MOU as well. 



No. 1003. COMMERCIAL LEASE (Gross) (Page 12 of 12)   Initials:      
                                                                                                                      Landlord               Tenant 

a.  To assume responsibility for costs or expenses related to maintaining space for library services, 
including planning and implementation to create and maintain a comfortable and safe facility for the 
public to use;  

b.  To prepare and provide space for the Public Computer Center equipment, furniture, and services,  

c.  To determine the location and assist in the installation of equipment and furnishings; 

d.  To include Public Computer Center furniture during custodial services and facility maintenance;  

e. To provide security inside and around the building; 

f.  To pay for utilities and to provide property insurance for the building; and  

g.  To assist with promoting library services through FOR communication channels  

 

THE PARTIES SHOULD INITIAL EACH PAGE OF THE LEASE AND SIGN BELOW. EACH PARTY 
SHOULD RECEIVE A SIGNED COPY OF THE LEASE AND ANY ADDENDA. 
 
TENANT: 
 
 
High Plains Library District  , a(n) 
 
 
Library District   
 
 
By: Matthew Hortt    
 
Its: Executive Director  
 
Or  
 
   
[Signature of Individual] 
 
Date:    
 
 

 LANDLORD: 
 
 
Friends of Raymer Inc. , a(n) 
 
 
Nonprofit Organization   
 
 
By: Trina Kauk   
 
Its: President    
 
Or  
 
   
[Signature of Individual] 
 
Date:   

GUARANTOR (if applicable): 
 
 
  
[Signature] 
 
   
[Print Name] 
 
Date:    

  

  



HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION  
 
 

Meeting date:  December 9th, 2024 
Type of item: Action   
Subject: Request to Create a Restricted Library Card 
Presented by:  Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
Recommendation: Staff recommend the Board deny the request and maintain the circulation policy 
as currently written 

 
Background  
In mid-November, the District received what appeared to be a request for reconsideration of a 
material. Upon further review and follow up, the request was not for the reconsideration of a material, 
but for the District to consider creating a restricted type of library card. In this case one that would bar 
a youth (16 years old) from checking out materials not approved by their family. Staff have offered to 
block the youth’s card, but this did not satisfy the requestor. This change would affect the Circulation 
Policy and require Board approval.  
 
Considerations 
 
Per the current circulation policy, the District currently offers 5 types of library cards.  
 
Circulation policy 
The High Plains Library District derives much of its revenue from property taxes paid by residents of 
the District. Accordingly, all resources are for their benefit. The District does provide resources to 
nonresidents on a more limited basis. There is no charge for lost cards. 
 
Types of library cards 
The High Plains Library District provides library cards with varying levels of access. 
 
• Resident: full access to all resources issued to (1) residents of the District; (2) individuals who 
own or lease business space within District boundaries; (3) non-residents of the District who teach 
at a school district inside District boundaries; excludes academic instructors. 
 
• CLC (Colorado Libraries Collaborate): limited access to resources to non-residents who pay 
taxes for Colorado library services. 
 
• Limited: limited access to resources to residents who do not have necessary identification to 
receive a resident or CLC card. These patrons may be upgraded when they are able to provide 
identification. 
 
• E-access (Electronic Access): limited to computer use and downloadable materials only. 
Identification is not required. Minors must be accompanied by a parent when obtaining any card. 
 



• Organization card: issued to organizations willing to assume financial responsibility for their staff to 
obtain library materials for use in their organization.  
 
Staff have evaluated the possibility of creating this type of card. It would prove difficult. It would 
require blocking specific collection codes. This would mean that we could not pick and choose 
specific materials to be blocked but will need to block the ability to check out an entire collection.  
For example, we could not block a specific series of materials, but would have to block the entire 
adult fiction collection. 
 
Additionally, a restricted card type would not eliminate the possibility of the individual browsing and 
reading a material in the library.  
 
Staff have recommended and it has been the District’s stance that parents and guardians are 
responsible for the materials that a youth check out. Our preference is that parents and guardians be 
involved in their family’s library use. This has proved to be the most effective way of achieving our 
interpretation of the patron’s request.  
 
Staff Recommendation  
Staff recommend the Board deny the request and maintain the circulation policy as currently written 



HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION  
 
 

Meeting date:  December 9th, 2024 
Type of item: Information   
Subject: Outgoing Trustee Recognition  
Presented by:  Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
Recommendation: Item for information only. No action to be taken by the Board.  

 
Background  
The Board Terms for Teresa Nuñez, our Region 1 Trustee, & Mary Heberlee, our Region 5 Trustee, 
are set to end on December 31st, 2024.  
 
Considerations 
Staff would like to recognize the service of both individuals and thank them for their dedication and 
the time they have invested to help build our community! 
 
Staff Recommendation  
Item for information only. No action to be taken by the Board. 
 





 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
DRAFT - Regular Session Agenda 

Monday, January 13, 2025 
5:00 p.m. 

LINC Library Innovation Center  
501 8th Ave, Greeley, CO 80631 

 
This is also streamed virtually by GoToMeeting and viewed from your computer, tablet, or smartphone.  
https://www.mylibrary.us/hpldboardmeetings.  To view the Board meeting online, use this link and select the date 
of the meeting you want to join.  If you have public comments, you may submit questions at the time of signing 
up for the meeting.  All participants will be muted.  
 
New to GoToMeeting?  Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/399313765 
 
If you wish to address the Board via Public Comment, please attend the meeting in person.  If you 
are unable to attend in person, you can submit public comments to the Board prior to the Board 
meeting via Formstack: https://hpld.formstack.com/forms/board_questions 
 
The High Plains Library District Board may take action on any of the following agenda items as presented or 
modified prior to or during the meeting, and items necessary or convenient to effectuate the agenda items.   
 
1.0 OPENING OF MEETING 

1.0 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance 
1.1 Approval of Agenda  
1.2 Approval of Consent Agenda 

a. December 9, 2024 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes 
1.3 The Good We Do 
1.4 Public Comment 

 
2.0 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION 

2.1 Oath of Office and Ethics Policy (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
2.2 Election of Board Officers (Action) – Dr.  Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 

a. Chair 
b. Vice-Chair 
c. Secretary/Treasurer 

2.3 Selection of Board Committees (Action) – Dr.  Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
a. Finance 
b. Foundation 
c. Governance  
d. Construction Projects 

I. DSS Archive 
II. Mead 

 

https://www.mylibrary.us/hpldboardmeetings
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/399313765
https://hpld.formstack.com/forms/board_questions


 

2.4 Wember Facilities Master Plan Task Order (Action) – - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive 
Director 

2.5 Policy Updates   
a.  Service Animals policy    
b.  Flag policy  
c.  Photography and Video Recording policy      

2.6 Construction Update (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 
 

3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT 
3.0 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 

a. February 17, 2025 RS 
3.1 District Updates – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director 

 
4.0 BOARD COMMENTS 

4.0 Chair Report 
4.1 Vice-Chair 
4.2 Secretary/Treasurer 
4.3 Committees 
4.4 Other Board Members 

 
5.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Upcoming meetings: 
February 17, 2025, 5:00p.m.:  HPLD Board of Directors Meeting - Regular Session  
LINC Library Innovation Center, 501 8th Ave, Greeley, CO 80631 
 



1 
 

 
Associate Director of Public Services  
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 

• Grand Opening of the new Grover Library, with 110 attendees! 

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days? 
• We have a construction schedule for the Farr Library Refresh, with the library being 

closed from January 6th through 25th in order to complete the carpet replacement and 
much of the painting. 

Carbon Valley Operations 
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 

• Patron written feedback: "I love your library! Great building and contents - staff, books, 
magazine, and papers. So fine!" 

• Career and Workforce Development Librarian, Cassandra Bland, hosted a booth at the 
Carbon Valley Chamber Non-Profit Luncheon on November 14, making contact with 25 
people. 

• Librarian, Lisa Varra, conducted a Watercolor Painting Workshop for older adults on 
November 4 at the Carbon Valley Community Center with 16 in attendance. 

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days? 
• Library Manager, Melanie Goldman, and Librarian, Bridget Parker, will be attending 

the Carbon Valley CARES - December Social at the Carbon Valley Recreation Center on 
December 5. 

• Librarian, Amanda Pittman, and Library Associate, Liz Cook will host a booth at the 
Carbon Valley Holiday Festival on December 7. 

• Librarians Bridget Parker and Lisa Varra will host a booth at Mead Christmas in the Park 
on December 7. 

Facilities Operational Work 
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 

• Completed workorders incl warranty work orders and repairs. 
• Completed MOVE Vehicle inspections and maintenance. 
• Assisted with new rubber flooring at LINC in multiple areas. 
• Attended safety meetings and construction meetings for several locations incl assisting 

architects, buyers reps and subs with codes, building specs and work schedules. 
• Completed grand opening of the Grover library incl all start up services incl landscape 

maintenance and snow removals. 
• Added storage building with electricity to Grover location for additional storage needs. 
• Replaced broken windows at LINC and Erie libraries. 
• Completed HVAC PM's incl repairs. 
• Added additional lighting to children's museum incl rewiring outlets in studio at LINC due 

breaker overload. 
• Installed insta hot water heater at Riverside breakroom for staff. 
• Attended community meeting with new director. 
• Completed vandalism clean ups. 

MONTHLY BOARD OPERATIONAL UPDATES    November 2024 



2 
 

• Assisted directors and manager with property boundaries incl assisting with homeless 
patron issues. 

• Completed fall clean ups and winterizations. 
• Completed roof maintenance/PM's at all locations. 
• Assisted annual performance appraisals incl running ads for vacant custodian and 

facilities tech positions. 
• Completed cleaning at all locations incl supplies/equipment orders. 
• Completed snow/ice removals. 
• Completed skylight replacements due to storm. 
• Re-stained and sealed wooden columns at Erie to prevent weather decay.  
• Crack sealed DSS parking lot.  
• Assisted managers and directors with all manager's unbudgeted building upgrade 

requests.  

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days? 
• Ongoing work orders. 
• MOVE vehicle inspections and Maintenance incl record keeping. 
• Complete hiring for custodian and facilities tech positions. 
• Continue with cleaning and cleanings after holiday program and events. 
• Complete all 2024 projects and prep for new year projects. 
• Continue snow/ice removals at all locations. 

 
 
 
Finance Operational Work 
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 

• CPE  
• 2025 budget  
• Work with Public Trust Advisors on investment portfolio 
• Year-end and audit prep 

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days? 
• CPE 
• GFOA WPFN mentoring program 
• 2025 budget - file with state, submit mill levy certification to county assessors, submit to 

GFOA distinguished budget presentation award program 
• Work on SOPs 
• Work with Public Trust Advisors on investment portfolio 
• Year-end and audit prep 

 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Friends & Foundation Operational Work 
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 

• LINC Friends Appreciation Event 11/1-12 attendees 
• Q4 Board Meeting 11/4 
• Erie Friends Appreciation Event Rescheduled for 11/20 due to weather.  
• End of Year Marketing Materials to Branches 
• Continued End of Year Solicitations 
• Funding Request work 

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days? 
• Colorado Gives Day 11/20 
• Funding Project work 
• Continued work on Get Connected Volunteer Software 

Human Resources Operational Work 
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 

• Total Employees- 298* 
o Open Positions - 5 
o Job Applications Received - 39 
o New Hires -3 
o Resignations -2 
o Training Requests - 20 
* ADP Employee Count report produced at time of submitting the Board report. 

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days? 
• Open Enrollment 

 
Information Technology & Innovation Operational Work 
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 

• Done - Erie technology refresh 
• Done - District core equipment refresh  
• Test 

o Done - meeting room schedulers  
o Initiated - alternate alerting platforms 

• Done - Transition remote connection platforms  
• Support for:  

o Done- Skills Pipeline platform change  
o Done - Meeting room terms change 
o Initiated - Hill 'n Park site  
o Mead, Admin, Farr, CVR, pending Raymer 

• NPPL - pre request provided AWE units 
• FTL - per request provided additional AWE unit  

 
 



4 
 

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days? 
• JOHNSTOWN - Collaboration room installation  (Dec 4) 
• NPPL - new circuit installation/upgrade 
• Support for:  

o Hill 'n Park site  
o Mead, Admin, Farr, CVR, pending Raymer 

• Continued work/testing of: 
o meeting room schedulers  
o safety platforms/tools 

• Pending vendors - Johnstown - circuit upgrade (pending final installation schedule) 

Community Engagement & Strategies Operational Work 
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 

• Statistics from the State Demography Office: The State Demography Summit, held on 
Friday, November 1st showed the continued anticipated trend that Weld is one of the few 
counties showing growth due to both migration patterns and number of births exceeding 
deaths. The summit also provided an opportunity to talk to one of the demographers 
about visiting to Weld to talk with non-profit organizations. Elena shared this information 
with the Thriving Weld team who confirmed that they will be pursuing a session focused 
on demographics. 

• The Thriving Weld Quarterly Update included information about the economic situation 
for both the behavioral health and physical health fields. Essentially, demand for services 
are increasing, the need for staff is increasing, and the budget to hire and retain staff is 
shrinking. Currently, neither North Range Behavioral Health nor Sunrise Health are cutting 
existing staff however they are increasing their creativity in scheduling appointments and 
staffing services. 

• Possible Collaborative Mental Health Programming in April/May the Centennial Area 
Health Education Center (CAHEC) and North Range Behavioral Health are partnering with 
the Greeley Philharmonic Orchestra to host a concert in May. HPLD has been invited to 
participate and we are looking at how we can join the effort. 

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days? 
• Events of note: A couple of events are being held on December 2nd. United Way of Weld 

County will be hosting their Leaders in Giving Celebration at Aims Community College’s 
Welcome Center. While Elena will be attending that event, Bethany Lanphere (LINC) will 
be at the Hospitality Sector Happy Hour hosted by the NoCO Works alliance which is 
being held at the Double Tree at Lincoln Park. 

• The STELLA(!) Unconference on December 13th will be focused on community 
engagement and data-based decision making which makes it a potentially useful 
conference to attend. STELLA stands for Science, Technology, and Engineering Library 
Leaders in Action. The conference came to our attention as Joe Kraus at School of 
Mine’s Arthur Lakes Library is one of the organizers. 

 
 



5 
 

SERVICES 
 
Service - Programming 
What's Happened in the last 30 days? 
 
Title Date Location Attendance 
Centennial State Ballet 
Presents "The Nutcracker" 

11/30/2024 Erie Community Library 159 

RAWR!!!!!!! 11/23/2024 LINC Library Innovation Center 140 
Día de los Muertos @ LINC 11/2/2024 LINC Library Innovation Center 124 
Holiday Open House: 
Christmas Ornaments 

11/30/2024 LINC Library Innovation Center 105 

Moana Crafternoon 11/27/2024 LINC Library Innovation Center 87 
Tales for Tots 11/26/2024 Erie Community Library 71 
Tales for Tots 11/13/2024 Erie Community Library 70 
Family Storytime 11/25/2024 Erie Community Library 65 
Family Storytime 11/18/2024 Erie Community Library 64 
Family Storytime 11/4/2024 Erie Community Library 63 

 

 

 

 

 


	1.2 HPLD Board Agenda 12.9.24 RSand ES
	1.0 Opening of Meeting
	1.1 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	1.2 Approval of Agenda
	1.3 Approval of Consent Agenda
	a. November 18, 2024 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes

	1.4 The Good We Do
	1.5 Public Comment

	2.0 Items for Information/Action
	2.1 Introduction of new Trustees (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.2 Final Budget Overview (Action) – Natalie Wertz, HPLD Finance Manager
	a. Resolution 24-3, Adopt Budget
	b. Resolution 24-4, Appropriate Sums of Money
	c. Resolution 24-5, Set Mill Levy, Weld County
	d. Resolution 24-6, Set Mill Levy, Boulder County

	2.3 Member Library List of Services – Owner's Representative Reimbursement Guidelines Update (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.4 New Raymer MOU & Lease (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.5 Request to Create a Restricted Library Card (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.6 Outgoing Trustee Recognition (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT
	3.1 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. January 13, 2025 RS

	3.2 District Updates – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	4.0 BOARD COMMENTS
	4.1 Chair Report
	4.2 Vice-Chair
	4.3 Secretary/Treasurer
	4.4 Committees
	4.5 Other Board Members

	5.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)
	5.1 C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (f) Personnel Matters – Matthew Hortt’s Performance Appraisal

	6.0 ADJOURNMENT

	1.3a HPLD Board Minutes 11.18.24 RS
	1.0 Opening of Meeting AT 5:01PM
	1.1 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance

	All Trustees were Present unless noted:
	Chair Mary Heberlee
	Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	Trustee Deana Lemos-Garcia
	Trustee Teresa Nuñez attended virtually until 6:00p.m.
	Trustee Gerri Holton
	Trustee Michael Wailes

	Chair Heberlee read the following statement into record:
	High Plains Library District is dependent on the trust of its community to successfully achieve its mission. Therefore, it is crucial that all Trustees conduct business on behalf of the High Plains Library District with the highest level of integrity,...
	1.2 Approval of Agenda
	MOTION to approve the agenda: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	SECOND: Trustee Deana Lemos-Garcia
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 5:0

	1.3 Approval of Consent Agenda
	a. October 7, 2024 Regular Session Meeting Minutes
	b. November 4, 2024 Special Session Meeting Minutes
	MOTION to approve the consent agenda: Trustee Gerri Holton
	SECOND: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 5:0

	1.4 The Good We Do
	1.5 Public Comment

	2.0 Items for Information/Action
	2.1 New Member Library Director Introduction (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	INFORMATION ONLY, NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN

	2.2 Trustee Appointments (Information) – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	INFORMATION ONLY, NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN

	2.3 2025 Board Meeting Calendar (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	MOTION to approve the Board Meeting Calendar for 2025: Trustee Gerri Holton
	SECOND: Trustee Michael Wailes
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 5:0

	2.4 HR7525 / S4673 – the Special District Act (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	MOTION to add HPLD as a supporter on the NSDC site and generate letters of support: Trustee Deana Lemos-Garcia
	SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 5:0

	2.5 Guaranteed Maximum Price Approval for Carbon Valley Regional Library Remodel (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	MOTION to approve the GMP and direct the Executive Director to sign the document:
	Trustee Deana Lemos-Garcia
	SECOND: Trustee Michael Wailes
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 5:0

	2.6 Guaranteed Maximum Price Approval for Mead Library (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	MOTION to approve the GMP and direct the Executive Director to sign the document: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 5:0

	2.7 Member Library List of Services – Owner’s Representative Reimbursement (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	DIRECTION FROM THE BOARD: Keep the guidelines as is and add verbiage to them to clarify that HPLD’s Owner’s Rep must be used, then bring the changes to the Board to approve.


	3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT
	3.1 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. December 9, 2024 RS

	3.2 District Updates – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	4.0 BOARD COMMENTS
	4.1 Chair Heberlee went to Grover and Briggsdale and has been spending a lot of time at Northern Plains Public Library.  She is pleased with what we are doing to help Briggsdale, Grover and New Raymer.
	4.2 Vice-Chair Smock said she’s glad that CVR and Mead have starting dates for construction and she thanked everyone who was at Grover.
	4.3 Other Board Members
	Trustee Gerri Holton commented on how important libraries are to our communities.  Ft. Lupton just had a Day of the Dead celebration, which is a coming together and honoring of communities.  Trustee Nunez was also there.
	Trustee Michael Wailes said he was pleasantly surprised at the number of people at the Grover grand opening.  On another note, he was sitting next to two guys at a luncheon the other day.  He never would have guessed that they were library patrons; bu...


	5.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)
	5.1 C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b) Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney – Lochbuie case
	5.2  C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b) Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney – Granado case
	MOTION to adjourn from Regular Session and enter into Executive Session under C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) – Pursuant to section C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b), for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney – Lochbuie c...
	SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 4-0


	An executive session meeting of the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District was convened at 6:15pm on November 18, 2024 for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney regarding the Lochbuie ca...

	2.1 HPLD Board Communication 12.9.2024 - Trustee Appointments
	2.2 HPLD Board Communication 12.9.2024 - Budget for 2025
	2.2a High Plains Library District Budget 2025
	2.2b RESOLUTION TO ADOPT BUDGET 2025
	Resolution to Adopt Budget

	2.2c RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY 2025
	RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY
	Transfers (internal activities)


	2.2d RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES.Weld 2025
	RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES

	2.2e RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES.Boulder 2025
	RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES

	2.3 HPLD Board Communication 12.9.2024 - List of Services
	2.4 HPLD Board Communication 12.9.2024 - Raymer MOU- Lease
	2.4A Raymer-HPLD MOU redlines 10.25.24 (01392536)
	2.4B HPLD-FOR Draft Commercial Lease-Gross wfg redline 2024.10.25 (01392549)
	2.5 HPLD Board Communication 12.9.2024 - Request to Create a Restricted Library Card
	2.6 HPLD Board Communication 12.9.2024 - Recognition of Trustee
	3.1 HPLD Board Agenda 1.13.25 RS
	1.0 Opening of Meeting
	1.0 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	1.1 Approval of Agenda
	1.2 Approval of Consent Agenda
	a. December 9, 2024 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes

	1.3 The Good We Do
	1.4 Public Comment

	2.0 Items for Information/Action
	2.1 Oath of Office and Ethics Policy (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.2 Election of Board Officers (Action) – Dr.  Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. Chair
	b. Vice-Chair
	c. Secretary/Treasurer

	2.3 Selection of Board Committees (Action) – Dr.  Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. Finance
	b. Foundation
	c. Governance
	d. Construction Projects
	I. DSS Archive


	2.4 Wember Facilities Master Plan Task Order (Action) – - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.5 Policy Updates
	2.6 Construction Update (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT
	3.0 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. February 17, 2025 RS

	3.1 District Updates – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	4.0 BOARD COMMENTS
	4.0 Chair Report
	4.1 Vice-Chair
	4.2 Secretary/Treasurer
	4.3 Committees
	4.4 Other Board Members

	5.0 ADJOURNMENT

	6.0 Monthly Board Operational Updates - November 2024
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



